
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Thursday, 7 July 2022.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Alcohol, 
Entertainment & 
Late Night 
Refreshment 
Licensing 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Friday, 15 July 2022 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth (Chairman) 
Councillor Dean Ward (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Robert Broughton, Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing, Councillor George 
Chivers, Councillor Helen Crawford, Councillor Breda-Rae Griffin, Councillor Paul 
Fellows, Councillor Ms Jane Kingman, Councillor Philip Knowles and Councillor 
Nikki Manterfield 
 

Agenda 
 

   
1.   Apologies for absence 

 
 

2.   Disclosures of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 8 March 2022 
  

(Pages 3 - 10) 

4.   Licensing Act 2003: Application for a Premises Licence - The Iron 
Horse Ranch, 2 High Street, Market Deeping, PE6 8EB 
Committee to determine an application for a premises licence, report 
ENV816.  
 

(Pages 11 - 42) 

5.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Minutes 
Alcohol, Entertainment & Late 
Night Refreshment Licensing 
Committee 
Tuesday, 8 March 2022 

 

 
 
 

 
Committee members present 
  
Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth (Chairman) 
Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing 
Councillor Helen Crawford 
Councillor Ms Jane Kingman 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Nikki Manterfield 
 
Officers  
 
Chris Clarke, Elizabeth Reeve, Licensing Officers 
Heather Green, Licensing Team Leader  
Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Advisor  
Lucy Bonshor, Democratic Officer 
 

 
1. Apologies for absence 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Fellows and Steptoe. 
 
2. Disclosures of interests 
 

None disclosed. 
 
3. Minutes of the meeting held on 17 December 2021 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 17 December 2021 were proposed, 
seconded and AGREED. 

 
4. Licensing Act 2003: Review of Premises Licence - Fusion Buffet Grantham, 

14 The George Shopping Centre, High Street, Grantham 
 
(14:07 – 14:18 meeting adjourned to enable the Committee to read the supporting 
information submitted on behalf of the Premises Licence Holder)  
 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

Decision 

The Committee, in respect of Fusion Buffet Grantham, 14 The George 
Shopping Centre, High Street Grantham resolve to:  

1. Modify the conditions of the Premise Licence by adding the following 
conditions to the Licence to the effect that: 

• All relevant records must be maintained and retained accordingly of 
the right to work of any person working at the premises.  Such 
records to be made available for inspection on demand by any 
Responsible Authority.   

• All management is to undertake training in relation to right to work 
checks with refresher training every 12 months. Such records to be 
maintained and retained accordingly and made available for 
inspection on demand by any Responsible Authority.   

2.  In order for the above conditions to be actioned, the Premises Licence 
be suspended for a period of 10 days.  

The Legal Advisor confirmed those present in respect of the application before 
the Committee.  PC Jon Jones and Sgt Ian Cotton from Lincolnshire Police, 

Catherine McGarva Lincolnshire Police’s legal representative and Immigration 
Officer Stacey Donnelly.  Fusion Buffet Grantham was represented by Grant 
Shackleston, Chattertons Solicitors, the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) 
Ishan Acharya and his brother Manish Acharya were also present. 

 
The Licensing Officer presented report ENV806 which concerned an application 
for a review of a Premises Licence for Fusion Buffet Grantham, 14 The George 
Shopping Centre, High Street, Grantham.   
 
The review application related to the licensing objective, the prevention of crime 
and disorder and had been submitted by the Police as a Responsible Authority. 
Lincolnshire Police had allegedly acquired evidence that the business had 
employed illegal workers, someone who was in the country legally, but had not 
been granted the right to work.   In January 2022 an email was received from the 
Premise Licence Holder containing information in defence of the review and this 
was contained at Appendix 3.  A further representation was received in support of 
the review from The Home Office and this was shown at Appendix 2. 
 
The Police then made their representation and detailed the visit to the premises 
where three people were present.  Ishan Acharya (DPS), another male who was 
present on a training day in relation to chef work and was cleaning and prepping 
vegetables and a waitress.  Conversations were undertaken with all three.  After 
speaking to the Home Office, it was confirmed that the waitress, although in the 
country legally had no permission to work in the restaurant. On checking the 
information in relation to the man helping with the kitchen preparation it also 

4



 

transpired that he also had no right to work, but it was stated that he was only 
there on a trial. 

 
Contact with Manish Acharya over the telephone led the Police to believe that 
screening checks were done by him and documentation on the woman employee 
was with the accountant.   On checking with the Home Office, it was confirmed 
that woman’s visa was for Tier 5 work only in the UK, seasonal work and did not 
include restaurant work. 
 
In summary the granting of a premise licence meant that the holders had a 
responsibility to promote the licensing objectives, which through failure to check 
documentation correctly the Premises Licence holder had failed to do. 
 
The representative on behalf of the Acharya brothers then made his 
representation and which included some background information on the 
character of the brothers one of which had been a Gurkha in the British Army 
which allowed him an indefinite right to remain in the UK.  He was also employed 
as an engineer for Openreach and character references, including one from his 
line manager, were contained in the information circulated to Members which 
supported that he was a hardworking, honest and trustworthy person.  His 
brother had been in the country 10 years, he had come to study in the UK and 
again had an indefinite leave to remain in the UK.   
 
The business had been set up in March 2021, held a five star food hygiene and 
safety certificate and had good ratings on Trustpilot.  Initially family members had 
help with the businesses but further staff were required and following enquiries 
within the Nepalese community in London the waitress had been employed.  
Some checks were carried out in relation to the right to work in the UK and 
assumptions made, which due to the ignorance of the brothers with regard to 
their responsibilities were incorrect in relation to having the right to work within 
the restaurant. 

 
Members’ attention was drawn to the civil penalty notice that had been issued for 
the employment of an illegal worker. In respect of the man who was having a trial 
at the premises it could not be proved that he was employed at the premises.  
The Home Office civil penalty had originally been for £15,000 but mitigating 
factors had been taken into account and this had been reduced to £10,000 due to 
the co-operation by his clients. 
 
Details of the working hours undertaken by the woman were given and it was 
stated that at no time was she being exploited.  The facts were that the waitress 
was in the country legally but did not have the right to work in the restaurant, only 
the right to undertake seasonal work.   It was confirmed that the woman was 
known to the HMRC and the accountant had confirmed that she had a proper tax 
code, paid NI contributions and also contributed to a pension scheme.  There 
was no evidence that the brothers had wished to defeat the system by employing 
someone unlawfully.  Further discussion followed on the inadequate checks that 
had been carried out by Manish Acharya in relation to the right to work in the UK 

5



 

of the employee, although it was acknowledged that one of the right to work 
checks that had been done after the visit had shown that the women had a right 
to work which a subsequent check stated that she didn’t. 

 
Conditions were proposed to the licence to ensure that what had happened didn’t 
happen again and that evidence of the checks done were kept and available on 
request by a Responsible Authority and that training was undertaken by all 
management with regard to right to work checks and these were refreshed 
annually.  The brothers were trustworthy and genuine and this was reflected in 
the character references submitted and how they ran the business.  They had co-
operated with the Police and the mistakes they had made were genuine and not 
deliberate.   
 
He referred to the Home Office guidance in respect of employing illegal workers 
but felt that in this instance that would be a draconian measure, the restaurant 
would not be able to serve alcohol or food after 11pm and if this was imposed the 
business would close.  Suspension of the business for three months would again 
have a very detrimental effect as would removing the DPS, who through poor 
management had got into the position.  It was stated that this was unlikely to 
happen again as they were aware of their responsibilities.  Removing a 
licensable activity did not address the issue before the Committee and he urged 
the Committee to consider adding conditions to the licence which he read out.  A 
genuine mistake had been made and the business had suffered from the adverse 
publicity of the notice of the review as well as the civil penalty notice issued. 
 
Questions were then put by the Police with regard to the paper work that had 
been sent to the accountants, the right to work documentation and getting advice 
on their mandatory responsibilities as employers and of being a Premise Licence 
Holder. 

 
Further questions were asked by Members of the Committee of the Police and 
the checks that had been taken and the information that had been received, 
some of which form the Home Office had been incorrect. 
 
The Immigration Officer present then gave a brief presentation on how the visit to 
the premise had been undertaken due to intelligence that had been received 
about illegal workers.  She was unable to comment on the incorrect information 
that had been received. 
 
The Licensing Officer gave his closing statement and listed the options available 
to the Committee: 
 
- Modify the conditions of the licence; 
- Exclude a licensable activity from the licence; 
- Remove the designated premises supervisor (DPS); 
- Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; or 
- Revoke the licence. 
 

6



 

If the Committee decided that none of the above steps were necessary, then it 
need take no further action. 
 
The Police then gave their closing statement highlighting the facts before 
Members that the Premises employed someone who did not have the right to 
work in the restaurant. That there was clear criminality involved and a civil 
penalty of £10,000 had been issued. The guidance issued under section 182 
particularly sections 11.26 to 11.28 relating to the specific criminality involved and 
the evidence pointing to a lack of appropriate management and they asked the 
Committee to seriously consider the revocation of the Premise Licence. 

 
The Legal Representative for the Premise Licence Holder gave his closing 
statement and referred to the lack of understanding of the Premise Licence 
Holder and their naivete in undertaking the necessary right to work checks.  He 
stated that they had no intention of exploiting any vulnerable persons and asked 
the Committee to consider modifying the conditions and to steer clear of 
revocation of the Premises Licence. 
 
(15:50 the Licensing Officers, Police and Premises Licence Holder and 
representative left the meeting) 
 
(15:50 – 15:56 meeting adjourned) 
 
Following the short adjournment, the Committee discussed the application before 
them having regard to the report and appendices, the information circulated at 
the meeting, all the representations made, together with the Licensing Act 2003, 
Revised Statutory Guidance and Regulations and the Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy.   
 
Members felt that the Premises Licence Holder had clearly made a mistake in 
relation to the hiring of the waitress within the restaurant who was in the country 
legally, but did not have the right to work in the restaurant.  The Premises 
Licence Holder seemed to have a lack of knowledge in respect of his 
responsibilities in checking employees’ rights to work in the UK and he had 
confirmed that there had been no intention to break the law.  The Committee also 
acknowledged the efforts made by the Premises Licence Holder since the visit on 
10 January 2022 to ensure where applicable that staff held the appropriate permit 
to work in that business in the UK and to undertake necessary training to be 
confident in the hiring of staff.   

 
Members acknowledged that s182 of the revised guidance (paragraphs 11.26 to 
11.28) considered that the employment of persons not permitted to work in the 
UK was a criminal activity which should be treated particularly seriously, and 
revocation of the Licence should be seriously considered even in the first 
instance.  However, following the representations heard and the information 
before Members it was felt that revocation, in this instance, was not an 
appropriate sanction.   

 

7



 

Members then discussed what sanctions to administer having regard to the 
information before them and the options available.  It was proposed that the 
premise licence conditions be modified to include maintaining and retaining 
records in respect of any person working at the premises and their right to work, 
such records to be available on demand for inspection by any Responsible 
Authority.  A further condition to be added that all management was to undertake 
training in relation to right to work checks with refresher training to take place 
every 12 months.  Records to be maintained and retained accordingly and made 
available for inspection on demand by any Responsible Authority.   Members felt 
that the Premise Licence should also be suspended for a period of time and 
various timeframes were put forward. A proposal for a suspension of 14 days and 
the inclusion of the two conditions was proposed and this was seconded.  A 
further proposal for a suspension period of three weeks plus the two conditions 
was put forward but did not receive a seconder. 
 
Further discussion on the period of suspension followed and an amendment was 
proposed to reduce the timeframe to ten days and include the two conditions 
which was seconded and agreed by the original proposer and on being put to the 
vote was unanimously agreed. 

 
(16:27 the Licensing Officers, Police and Premises Licence Holder returned to 
the meeting) 
 
The Legal Advisor read out the Committees decision. Having considered the 
report and appendices and all late papers from the Licence Holder, all 
submissions made to it, together with the Licensing Act 2003, Revised Statutory 
Guidance and Regulations and the Statement of Licensing Policy of the Council 
the Committee had decided to modify the conditions of the Premises Licence by 
adding the following conditions to the effect that: 

• All relevant records must be maintained and retained accordingly of the right 
to work of any person working at the premises.  Such records to be made 
available for inspection on demand by any Responsible Authority.   

• All management is to undertake training in relation to right to work checks 
with refresher training every 12 months. Such records to be maintained and 
retained accordingly and made available for inspection on demand by any 
Responsible Authority.   

In order for the above conditions to be actioned, the Premises Licence was to be 
suspended for a period of 10 days.  

Reasons for the Decision  

The Committee was of the view that the evidence presented by the Police 
demonstrated that the Premises Licence Holder had failed to effectively manage 
the premises in relation to the employment of staff and had failed to actively 
promote the licensing objective of the prevention of crime and disorder. 

8



 

The Premises Licence Holder had been found to have employed or retained staff 
at the business who did not have the relevant permits to work in that business in 
the UK.  The Premises Licence Holder, at the time of the visit of the Responsible 
Authorities, did not have records to prove to the Responsible Authorities that the 
staff working at the premises were legally able to work and had not updated itself 
on the employer’s legal requirements needed for the employment of staff, in 
particular to take steps to manage the business to ensure staff who were 
employed at the business had the relevant permits to work in that business in the 
UK.  

The Committee had determined that the Premises Licence Holder had failed to 
comply with its obligations in respect of the licensing objective for the prevention 
of crime and disorder. 
 
The Committee acknowledged the Premises Licence Holder’s apology, the 
admission to lack of knowledge of checking employees’ rights to work in the UK 
and confirmation that there was no intention to break the law.  The Committee 
also acknowledged the efforts made by the Premises Licence Holder since the 
visit on 10 January 2022 to ensure where applicable that staff held the 
appropriate permit to work in that business in the UK and to undertake necessary 
training to be confident in the hiring of staff.  Also, assurances from the Premises 
Licence Holder as to future conduct in this respect.  

 
The Committee noted that the Premises Licence Holder had held the Premises 
Licence since June 2021 and was therefore relatively new to the restaurant 
business, but this was no excuse for not carrying out the mandatory right to work 
checks.  
 
The Committee were mindful that the s182 revised guidance (paragraphs 11.26 
to 11.28) considered the employment of persons not permitted to work in the UK 
to be a criminal activity which should be treated particularly seriously, and 
revocation of the Licence should be seriously considered even in the first 
instance. 
 
In view of the evidence heard, the Committee were concerned that Premises 
Licence Holder appeared to be unaware of his legal responsibilities concerning 
the employment of illegal workers.  

 
The Committee concluded that in this case, the imposition of additional 
conditions on the Premises Licence and a suspension of the Premises Licence 
for a period of 10 days was both proportionate and necessary to meet the 
licensing objective of the prevention of crime and disorder. 

  
Right to Appeal and Effective Date of Decision 
  
The Premises Licence Holder, the party that applied for the review and any 
Responsible Authority or Interested Parties who had made representations may 
appeal this decision made by the Licensing Committee to the Magistrates Court.  

9



 

The appeal must be lodged with the Magistrates Court within 21 days of the 
notification of the decision - (notification of decision being 09/03/22).  The 
decision of the Licensing Committee does not take effect until the end of the 
period for appealing against that decision – (29 March 2022).  In the event of an 
appeal being lodged, the decision made by the Licensing Committee does not 
take effect until any appeal is heard and finally determined. 

 

5. Close of meeting 
 

The meeting closed at 16:34. 
 
 

10



 
 

Licensing Act 2003: Application for a Premises Licence – The Iron Horse 
Ranch, 2 High Street, Market Deeping, PE6 8EB  

Committee to determine an application for a premises licence.  

 

Report Author Chris Clarke, Licensing Officer  

 

 
01476 406080 

 licensing@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Healthy and Strong 
Communities 

Regulatory All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Heather Green, Licensing Team Leader 22 June 2022 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

That the Alcohol, Entertainment and Late-Night Refreshment Committee consider the 
application for a new premises licence for the premises known as The Iron Horse Ranch, 
2 High Street, Market Deeping, PE6 8EB and, the views of the representations made by 
members of the public bearing in mind the four licensing objectives: 

• The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

• Public Safety 

• The Prevention of Public Nuisance 

• The Protection of Children from Harm  

 

 
 

 

 

  

  

11

Agenda Item 4



 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 On 16th May 2022 an application was received by the Licensing team for a new premises 

licence for The Iron Horse Ranch at the above location (Appendix 1). The application was 

processed and forwarded to all the responsible authorities. The consultation period of 28 days 

expired on 13th June 2022.   

1.2 The application is for: 

a) Supply of alcohol 08:00 – 00:30, Monday until Sunday.  

b) Provision of Films 08:00 – 00:30, Monday until Sunday. 

c) Provision of Live Music 08:00 – 00:30, Monday until Sunday.  

d) Provision of Recorded music 08:00 – 01:00, Monday until Sunday.  

e) Performances of Dance 08:00 – 01:00, Monday until Sunday.  

f) Late night Refreshment 23:00 – 00:30, Monday until Sunday.  

1.3 During the consultation period the authority received one representation relating to noise from 

the premises (Appendix 2). 

1.4 No representations were received from Lincolnshire Police, Environmental Health or from any 

other responsible authority.  

1.5 Licensing Officers have the delegated authority to decide whether a representation is 

relevant, vexatious, or frivolous however, Section 9 of the Revised Guidance issued under 

section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 states: 

9.9 It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any 

aspect of a representation should be given to the person making that representation.  

The subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body 

making the representation to amplify and clarify it.          

2 Options available to the Committee 

2.1 Where relevant representations are made, the authority must: 

i. Hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and each person 

who has made such representation agree that a hearing is unnecessary, and 

ii. Having regard to the representations, take such steps mentioned below (if any) as it 

considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.   

The steps are: 

iii. Grant the licence subject to conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule 

modified to the extent that the Committee considered appropriate for the promotion of 

the licensing objectives and any mandatory conditions that must be included under the 

Licensing Act 2003. 

iv. Exclude from the scope of the licence a licensable activity to which the application 

relates. 

v. Refuse to specify a person in the licence as a Premises supervisor. (DPS) 

vi. Reject the application. 

2.2 The licensing authority should give appropriate weight to; 

❖ The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives 

12



 
 

❖ The representation (including supporting information) presented by the parties. 

❖ The guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

❖ South Kesteven District Council’s Licensing Policy.  

 

2.3 The guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 states at 9.37 that; 

“As a matter of practice, Licensing Authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the steps 

considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives that have 

given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed areas.  A 

responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written representation. 

They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the applicant prior to the 

hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and should be allowed 

sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practical time limits. 

3 Financial Implications  

3.1 There are no specific financial implications associated with this report, however, in the event 

of an applicant, responsible authority or interested person making an appeal against a 

decision which was then subsequently upheld, the council may incur additional costs. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 

4 Legal and Governance Implications  

4.1 This is an application for a new premises licence under S17 of the Licensing Act 2003.  The 

Committee should consider whether the application is likely to impact on the promotion of the 

licensing objectives.  In reaching the decision the Committee should consider, the steps that 

are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives, the representation (including supporting 

information) presented by the parties, the guidance issued under S182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 and the Councils own statement of licensing policy. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance 

(Deputy Monitoring Officer) 

5 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

5.1 Not applicable. 

6 Risk and Mitigation 

6.1 Not applicable. 

7 Community Safety Implications  

7.1 Community Safety implications will be considered in accordance with the licensing objectives 

and the duty to consider in accordance with S17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

8 Appendices 

Appendix 1 - Application for a premises licence. 

Appendix 2 - Representation from Interested party. 

9 Background Papers 

9.1 Statement of Licensing Policy 1st April 2021   

9.2 Guidance to Applicants  

9.3 Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

13

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8552
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8303
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



Document is Restricted

39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 8 March 2022
	4 Licensing Act 2003: Application for a Premises Licence - The Iron Horse Ranch, 2 High Street, Market Deeping, PE6 8EB
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


